£y

PROCEEDINGS

OF THE

Cambridge Qntiquarian | Soriety,

OcTOBER 1935—O0OCTOBER 1936

VOLUME XXXVII

Cambrivae: .
Published for the Cambridge Antiquarian Society
By BOWES & BOWES

1937

Price Twelve Shillings and Sizpence net



' CAMBRIDGE
ANTIQUARIAN SOCIETY
PROCEEDINGS



PROCEEDINGS

Cambrivge Antiquarian Society
OCTOBER 19385—0OCTOBER 1936

Vor. XXXVII

CAMBRIDGE

'PUBLISHED FOR THE CAMBRIDGE ANTIQUARIAN SOCIETY

BY BOWES & BOWES
| 1937



PRINTED IN GREAT BRITAIN




CONTENTS'

Council and Officers, October 1936-1937 . . . !

. Report of the Council for 1936

Surimary of Accounts for year ending December 31, 1936 .
List of Presidents of the Society
List of Honorary, Ordinary and Associate Members

Notes on the Character and Dating of Domestic Architecture in
the Cambridge District. By H. C. HuerEs, M.A., F.R.IB.A.

Dutch Influence in East Anglian Architecture. By C. L. Cun-
* WORTH .

‘Ornament in Hadstock Church, Essex. By L. COBBETT,'M,D.,»

F.R.CS. . . . . . . .

Stone Bowl found on the Guildhall Site. By L. Cosserr, M.D.,
F.R.C.S,, and E. SaviLrLe Peck, M.A.

-

Note on some further Roof Bosses in Ely Cathedral. By C. J. P.
Cave, M.A., F.S.A. .

Some Unpublished- Roman Bronze Statuettes in the Museum of
Archaeology and Ethnology, Cambridge. By Frirz M.
Heroneruem, DrPhil. e .

Romano-British Burials at Linﬁon, Cambridgeshire. By T. C.
LeTHBRIDGE, ML.A., F.S.A, : .

Note on Old Building at Littleport known as the Fisher’s Cottage .

Archaeological Notes. By T. C. LETHBRIDGE, M.A., F.8.A,, and
M. O'RErLLy, M.A. . L . '

Index .

ix
xi
XX

xxiii

XXV

24
43
47

50

52

68
72

4
- 76






LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

Dutch Influence in East Anglian Architecture.
Houses at Fen Drayton, Cambs., and Enkhuizen

Blicking Hall, Norfolk. Barn near Aylsham, Norfolk. Whlte

Hart Inn, Scole, Suffolk

Barn at Mulbarton, Norfolk. Houses at Botesdale and Beccles,
Suffolk
.Amsterdg.m houses

Merchant’s House, Commercial End, Swaffham Bulbeck. Houses
at Over

Ornament. in Hadstock Church, Essex.
Ornaments at Hadstock and at Great Canfield
[

North doorway and door, Hadstock

North doorwa,y, Hadstock. Interior of church. Details of
north door .

Stone Bowl found on Guildhall Site.
Bowls on- Guildhall Site; Hereford Folk Museum; Linton,
Cambs.; Herringswell, Suffolk

Bowls at Whittlesford Chapel; Saffron Walden Museum; Basle;
and from Thunderley S . . .

Fonts at Anstey, Herts. and St Peter’s, Cambridg_e .

Note on Roof Bosses in Ely Cathedral.
Roof bosses in Ely Cathedral

Roman Bronze Statuettes.
Mercury, from Manea (front and back) . -

. Hercules, Bristol; near Ely; ?Colchester: .

Hercules, near Ely; Sutton; Diana, Bassingbourn; Hercules,
between Icklingham and Cavenham; Venus, near Ely

Helmet, Cottenham Fen; ““Civic Staff”, and Figures of horsemen,
Willingham Fen Hoard

“Radabweiser”; Venus, Colchester; Mercury, Great Thu}low,
Suffolk

PAGE

facing 26

2

3y

£

28 -

31
36

38

/

43
44

45

47

48
49

50

52
53

54

57

60



vii LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS
Romano-British Burials at Linton.
Plate with graffito, grave 4; Pots from grave 5

Ornaments ete. from gra.ve 5

Old Building at thtleport
Flsher s Cottage, September 1934 Doorwav, as left in 1937

A'rchmologwal N otes
Beaker, Whittlesford

Beakers at Hilgay and Barton Bendish

Besides a number of figures in the text.

PAGE
facing 68
EH) 70

» 12

5 14
’s 75






ROMANO- BRITISH BURIALS AT LINTON
CAMBRIDGESHIRE.

By T. C. LETHBRIDGE, M.A., F.S.A.

During the excavation of the trenches for the footings of the
walls of the Warden’s house at the new Village College at
Linton two human skeletons were discovered. Dr Palmer was
- told of this, and at once asked me to come over and look at
them. When I reached the site the two skeletons had been
taken up, but it was possible to see the places where they had
lain, and the bones of a young child were also visible in another
part of the trenches. I thought it possible that the two adult
skeletons were those of women, and suggested that as their
skulls resembled some which I had recently excavated at
Guilden Morden they also might belong to the Roman period.
We therefore asked whether we might make an examination -
of the ground in the neighbourhood of the Warden’s house
to see whether any more burials were to be found there. (It
should be noted that no burials had been discovered when the
foundation trenches for the college itself were dug.) As a
result of our efforts two more burials were in fact found, as
well as ditches and pits, of the date which we-had expected.
The site is very suitable for occupation, for at this point
a low gravel terrace borders the narrow flood-plain of the
“Linton river”. ‘It may possibly have some bearing on the
early history of the place to note that a right of way to a ford
over this stream passes the burials at a few yards distance.
Dr Palmer is of opinion that this ford is not the one which
gave its name to Chilford hundred, which was more probably
about two hundred yards downstream. In any case we can be
-confident that the site was handy to the ancient crossing of
the stream hereabouts.
- Tt will be seen from the plan (Flg 1) that the burlals form a
comparatively compact little group, and when we note that
three of them were those of children and two probably of
women we may perhaps be justified in thinking that they
represent a single family burial ground, and are not outlying
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b and e. Pots from grave 5.
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units of a large communal cemetery. This view is perhaps
borne out by the absence of any burials in the extensive
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Fig. 1. Plan of the excavations at the new Linton Village College.
trenches dug for the foundations of the college itself and the

+ drains, etc. leading to it.
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70 . T, ¢. LETHBRIDGE

The first burial that we found, grave 4, was that of a child
2 ft. 6 in. long, with a femur 6 in. long; it:was 3 ft. 3 in. deep
in sandy gravel. Beside its left shoulder was a dish of grey

. ware with a graffito in the form of a trident scratched on it

(Pl. La). The second burial, grave 5, was also that of a child.
The skeleton was about 4 ft. long as it lay in the sandy gravel,
and was very fragmentary. Close to the lower jaw, which

- was partly preserved by contact with the bronze, were five

bronze bracelets (Pl. II), one hundred and forty- eight jet
beads, lying in confusion, a tiny fragment of a silver wire ring,
and a bone pin with a disc head (PL II). Between the
thighs lay the neck of a glass bottle (P1. II) and half a shale
armlet (Pl. II). Beside the right femur was a small olla of
grey ware (P1. I5), with part of the neck broken in antiquity,
and beside the right ankle a flanged bowl of the same paste,
apparently smashed at the time it was placed in the grave
(Pl.1c¢). Asmalliron nail and traces of charcoal were observed
between these two vessels. The body had apparently been
carefully disposed for burial, and lay on its back with its
arms at its sides. It was too much decayed to be preserved.

Bronze bracelets. Three of these are of simple penannular
form, two of them of flattened oval and the other of almost
hemispherical section. The remaining two have their flattened
terminals roughly formed into snakes’ heads, and belong to
a well-known class (cf. British Musewm Guide to the Roman
Period, fig. 81). The larger of these two has three smaller rings
strung on it, also of bronze (or brass); one of them is a simple
penannular ring, 0-7 in. in diameter ; another, slightly smaller,
has been broken in antiquity, and the third is a finger-ring
with a broad, flat bezel flanked by flattened wings.

Jet beads. These are nearly all cylindrical, of varying
lengths, encircled by one to eight incised grooves. The
exceptions are two beads which appear to be shaped to
resemble dentalium shells, and one small faceted bead
(P1. TI). These three beads, and possibly one of the cylindrical
beads, may perhaps have formed part of another and older
string, as they are of a slightly different colour from ‘the rest
and are ‘considerably more worn. The cylindrical beads are

-of a comparatively common type (cf. Report on the excavation
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of the Roman cemetery at Ospringe, Kent, by W. Whiting,
W. Hawley, and Thomas May: Reports of the Research
Committee of the Society of Antiquaries, no. viix, Pl. LV).

Bone pin. We have not been able to find an exact parallel.

Shale armlet. These are comparatively common in the
- Roman period in this area.

Glass bottle-neck. This seems to have formed part of a large
two-handled bottle, probably not less than 6 in. in diameter.
The handles apparently represent conventionalized dolphins.
The whole fragment has been carefully chipped so that no
sharp edges remain, and was undoubtedly buried as an object
in itself, and was not a vessel accidently broken during the
burial. Somewhat similar handles may be seen on a vessel
from Ospringe (op. cit. Pl. XXXVIII, 448).

This burial seems to belong to the later part of the Roman
period, probably not earlier than the second century, and it is
unusual to find a Roman inhumation so richly .furnished in
this district. More remarkable still is the character of some
of the objects and their disposal in the grave. It is hard to
understand. why the five bracelets should have been placed
at the neck, why a finger-ring and perhaps two ear-rings
should have been strung on one of them, why only half of
the shale armlet was included, and above all why only a
carefully prepared fragment of a glass vessel should have been
placed in the grave. Single iron nails are not unusual in
Romano-British graves, and are generally thought to have
some ritual significance (cf. B. M. Guide, p. 43).
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